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          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good morning.

          3  My name is Madeline Provenzano, and I Chair the

          4  Committee on Housing and Buildings and, my goodness,

          5  I'm starting so late.

          6                 Today the Committee is conducting its

          7  first hearing on Intro No. 114.  It's a local law to

          8  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

          9  York in relation to increasing penalties for

         10  violating the Housing Maintenance Code by failing to

         11  provide adequate heat and hot water.  Not a problem

         12  in here today.

         13                 The Committee expects to hear from

         14  representatives of the Department of Housing

         15  Preservation and Development and welcomes testimony

         16  from landlords, tenants and other interested persons

         17  concerning this bill.

         18                 In accordance with the provisions of

         19  the Housing Maintenance Code and the Multiple

         20  Dwelling Law, landlords are required to provide heat

         21  and hot water to tenants of multiple dwellings and

         22  to every tenant- occupied, one or two- family

         23  dwelling. Hot water should be provided 365 days per

         24  year between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and midnight at

         25  a constant minimum temperature of 120 degrees
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          2  Fahrenheit.  Owners are also required to provide

          3  appropriate amounts of heat between October 1st and

          4  May 31st, a period designated as the Heat Season.

          5                 Intro. No. 114 will increase the

          6  civil penalties for a violation, for failing to

          7  provide adequate heat or hot water to a building.

          8  The current civil penalty of $250 per day would be

          9  doubled to $500 per day under the provisions of this

         10  bill.  The bill also imposes an additional $1,000

         11  per day penalty for each subsequent violation by the

         12  same person during the same calendar year or for a

         13  subsequent violation by the same person for failing

         14  to provide heat during the Heat Season irrespective

         15  of whether the subsequent violation occurred in the

         16  same building or not.

         17                 If there is anyone wishing to testify

         18  on this bill you must sign in with the Sargeant- at-

         19  Arms and we will be hearing testimony and taking

         20  questions only on Intro. No. 114 today. I am joined

         21  by my colleagues on my right.  Council Member Jimmy

         22  Oddo, Council Member Tony Avella, Council Member Eva

         23  Moskowitz, who is the Sponsor of the bill.  Council

         24  Member Jackson is here.  Oh?  Okay.  Are you eating

         25  breakfast or lunch? Or brunch? Okay.  I'll ask
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          2  Council Member Moskowitz to say a few words as the

          3  Sponsor of the legislation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

          5  Madam Chair.  I appreciate, very much, this

          6  opportunity and all the work that you and your staff

          7  have done on this bill.

          8                 This is a bill that I- came out of my

          9  District Office and constituent complaints who were

         10  left somewhat helpless in the winter months by

         11  landlords who, unfortunately a small minority of

         12  landlords, who have not repaired boilers and made

         13  the necessary corrections to heating and hot water

         14  problems.

         15                 I would just note that the last time,

         16  as I think HPD is going to testify, the last time

         17  the fine schedule was amended was 22 years ago.  I

         18  think it's important that we update these fines so

         19  that landlords who clearly violate the law are held

         20  accountable.  So I look forward to the testimony

         21  and, hopefully, the passage of this important bill.

         22  Before it gets incredibly cold.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         24  Council Member. Now, we'll hear testimony from John

         25  Warren, who needs no introduction.  First Deputy
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          2  Commissioner of HPD.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WARREN: Good

          4  morning, Chairperson Provenzano and Members of the

          5  Committee.  I am John Warren, First Deputy

          6  Commissioner at HPD and to my left is Joseph

          7  Rosenberg, Deputy Commissioner of Inter-

          8  Governmental Affairs at HPD.

          9                 Intro. 114 increases the civil

         10  penalty for each Housing Maintenance Code violation

         11  that deals with heat and hot water from $250 to $500

         12  for each day the violation exists.  It also imposes

         13  a new penalty of $1,000 for each additional heat and

         14  hot water violation in any building owned by the

         15  same person, during the same calendar year, or for

         16  an additional violation for not maintaining the

         17  minimum heat requirements between October 1st and

         18  May 31st of the particular year, for each day the

         19  violation exists. The last time that the Housing

         20  Maintenance Code was amended was 1982 when the fine

         21  was increased from $25 to the current $250 per day.

         22                 HPD supports Intro. 114, however, we

         23  have some technical recommendations that serve to

         24  clarify and strengthen this legislation.  For

         25  example, on line 8 of the first page reads, a $1000
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          2  per day penalty will be imposed for each subsequent

          3  violation by the same person.  HPD is concerned

          4  about the phrase by the same person since more than

          5  one person can own a building and we don't want to

          6  encourage owners to transfer buildings to evade

          7  fines or litigation.

          8                 At the same time, we do not want to

          9  unfairly penalize landlords who own more than one

         10  building and receive as little as only one violation

         11  on each building.  Responsible landlords who

         12  legitimately repair or replace old boilers and

         13  provide heat and hot water should be allowed and

         14  encouraged to do so.  Prosecuting a single case

         15  where a landlord owns two buildings in different

         16  boroughs would be virtually impossible because we

         17  would have to bring the cases in different boroughs,

         18  even though each building may have only one

         19  violation.

         20                 Currently, when HPD receives a heat

         21  or hot water complaint, we first call the owner or

         22  managing agent to make them aware of the complaint

         23  and compel them to get this essential service

         24  restored.

         25                 Before we dispatch an inspector to
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          2  the building, we call the tenant to determine if the

          3  heat and hot water has been restored immediately.

          4  If service has not been restored, an inspector is

          5  sent to the building and the owner is issued a

          6  Notice of Violation.  We are required to post a

          7  notice in the building, which says that the owner

          8  has 24 hours to correct the violation. We also send

          9  a notice by certified mail, return receipt requested

         10  which gives the owner a date that the violation must

         11  be certified as corrected.  In cases where the

         12  owners fail to restore heat or hot water, or when

         13  HPD is unable to reach the owner of the building,

         14  our Emergency Repair Program, which uses both in-

         15  house staff and private contractors, makes the

         16  necessary repairs and restores service.  The cost of

         17  making the repair is billed to the owner and becomes

         18  a lien against the property if it is not paid. Last

         19  year, HPD performed 3,074 repairs at a cost of

         20  $3,770,000.

         21                 HPD's Housing Litigation Division

         22  offers first- time heat litigants the option to pay

         23  the civil fine or attend a heat training program.

         24  HPD runs an education program that targets building

         25  owners that were issued heat and hot water
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          2  violations during the previous year's heating

          3  season.  HPD staff also contacts owners with prior

          4  year heat or hot water violations and offers

          5  training on proper heating plant operations and

          6  information on how they can reduce expenses while

          7  maintaining adequate heat.  We also monitor these

          8  owners and buildings to see if they receive any

          9  additional heat violations during the new heat

         10  season.  Owners who incur additional heat violations

         11  are subject to litigation seeking maximum litigation

         12  penalties and are subject to continued scrutiny on

         13  heat and other code deficiencies.  During the 2003-

         14  2004 heat season, our Housing Litigation sued over

         15  3,300 owners or landlords and collected over

         16  $2,000,000 in fines.

         17                 Additionally, our housing education

         18  programs for owners, managing agents and

         19  superintendents address property management issues

         20  including the maintenance of a building's heating

         21  plant.  Owners can now also watch an on- line video

         22  called Heat and Hot Water in Residential Buildings

         23  at nyc.gov/hpd or order it at no cost by calling

         24  311.

         25                 Thank you and I would be happy to
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          2  answer any questions you might have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          4  We've also been joined by Council Member Leroy

          5  Comrie, Council Member Latitia James, Council Member

          6  Fidler.  I would just like to remind folks once

          7  again that we'll be hearing testimony and

          8  entertaining questions today only on Intro. 114A.

          9  Having said that, do we have any questions.  John?

         10                 MR. WARREN: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: This is an

         12  easy one, I think.  Oh, we certainly will.  I'm sure

         13  it will be later this month.  Thank you both.

         14                 Next we have Molly.  What's your last

         15  name Molly? OK, from the Independent Budget Office.

         16                 MS. PARK:  Good morning Chair Woman

         17  Provenzano and Members of the Committee.  I am Molly

         18  Wasow Park, Senior Budget and Policy Analyst at the

         19  Independent Budget Office.  Thank you for inviting

         20  us to testify on the City's response to heat and hot

         21  water violations.

         22                 The Department of Housing

         23  Preservation and Developments Code Enforcement

         24  Program and the fines they discussed here today are

         25  important tools for insuring that City residents
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          2  have heat and hot water.  But Code enforcement is

          3  not designed to prevent heating emergencies.  In

          4  contrasts, the Federal Home Energy Assistance

          5  Program, or HEAP, is intended to help low- income

          6  households pay heating bills before the heat is shut

          7  off.  However, the State's implementation of HEAP is

          8  oriented towards the needs of households who pay for

          9  their own heating bills, not renters living in

         10  apartment buildings more typical of New York City

         11  who pay for heat through their monthly rent.  As a

         12  result, the Program does little to prevent heating

         13  emergencies among New York's low- income population

         14  resulting in unnecessary cost to the City for HPD

         15  emergency heat and hot water repairs.  Furthermore,

         16  the City receives a disproportionately small share

         17  of the State's HEAP allocation.

         18                 Annually, about 25% of the complaints

         19  received by HPD allege that the landlord is not

         20  providing heat and or hot water.  IBO estimates that

         21  HPD spent about $7.5 million in 2004 on its heat and

         22  hot water inspection and repair program.  HEAP is a

         23  federal block grant that provides a direct

         24  assistance to low- income households to pay utility

         25  bills.  Within broad federal guidelines, states
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          2  implement the grant program through a so- called

          3  State Detailed Model Plan.

          4                 In New York, HEAP is designed to

          5  serve state- wide housing patterns and is not well

          6  adapted to the needs of New York City.  There are

          7  two primary problems with the HEAP program structure

          8  from the City's point of view.  First, the bulk of

          9  the funding is distributed in small amounts to

         10  households not experiencing financial crisis related

         11  to heating needs.  Second, owners of multi- family

         12  buildings who are directly responsible for paying

         13  the fuel costs are, in most cases, ineligible for

         14  heat assistance.  As a result of these program

         15  design flaws, New York City receives a

         16  disproportionately small share of total heat funds

         17  and the program does little to prevent heat

         18  emergencies among New York's low- income population.

         19                 There are two primary categories of

         20  households that can receive benefits.  Heaters, who

         21  pay for heating costs directly, and non- heaters who

         22  make rent payments that include heat.  Heater

         23  households are eligible for grants up to $400 per

         24  year while the maximum grant for non- heater

         25  household is $50 per year.  Additional emergency
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          2  benefits ranging from $100 to $485 are also

          3  available for applicants who are "the customer of

          4  record with a home energy vendor.[sic]

          5                 In New York City, 82% of households

          6  that are income eligible for HEAP, that is they have

          7  incomes under 150% of the poverty level, live in

          8  multi- family buildings and 91% of them are renters

          9  who, in most cases, pay heating cost in their rent.

         10  They are, therefore, only eligible for the smaller

         11  non- heater grant and cannot access any emergency

         12  HEAP aid.  Many of these non- heater households are

         13  public assistance recipients who receive HEAP

         14  benefits automatically.  These households receive an

         15  extra $50 in their welfare checks once during the

         16  year.  Most of these recipients are paying for heat

         17  through their rent, however.  While the annual $50

         18  of HEAP aid may be meaningful to these households,

         19  it is most likely not being used to address heating

         20  needs.  In contrast, owners of multi- family

         21  buildings who are directly responsible for paying

         22  for fuel costs are, in most cases, ineligible for

         23  HEAP assistance.  Owners face higher operating costs

         24  in the winter and may have legitimate difficulties

         25  meeting these costs, but they are generally not
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          2  eligible for HEAP aid unless they meet income

          3  criteria.

          4                 In these circumstances, there is no

          5  way for HEAP funds to be used to prevent the kind of

          6  heat and hot water emergencies to which HPD

          7  responds.  Because most low- income New Yorkers are

          8  only eligible for the smaller non- heater grants and

          9  most fuel bill payers are ineligible for any

         10  assistance, New York City receives a substantially

         11  smaller share of the total New York State HEAP grant

         12  than the size of the City's population would

         13  suggest.  New York City accounts for 42% of the

         14  State's population. While the City typically

         15  receives 12% to 14% of the State HEAP funding, IBO

         16  estimates that the average HEAP grant in New York

         17  City is $71 per year.

         18                 It is possible that some of the more

         19  than a 100,000 complaints that HPD receives and the

         20  approximately 2,300 heat and hot water emergency

         21  repairs that it makes each year could be avoided if

         22  HEAP were better structured to meet New York City's

         23  needs.  Under the current design of the program,

         24  most of the households that are receiving HEAP are

         25  not facing heating emergencies.  In contrast, the
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          2  building owners who purchase fuel are typically

          3  ineligible for HEAP.  This program design insures

          4  that heat and hot water emergencies will continue to

          5  occur and that the City will continue to pay to

          6  resolve these emergencies.  I'd be happy to answer

          7  any questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Molly, I

          9  think this was a stretch in relating your testimony

         10  to Intro. 114A.  Also, we are talking about a

         11  federal program, so, I'm confused.

         12                 MS. PARK:  Well, the State has a fair

         13  amount of latitude to come up with program

         14  regulations because it's a block grant and the State

         15  has opted to structure it in a way that doesn't

         16  serve New York City effectively.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, and so

         18  the tie- in szzh 144A is?

         19                 MS. PARK: Well, I think it's

         20  important to talk about it as well as fining the

         21  landlords as to also talk about how the ultimate

         22  concern is the heating emergencies and I think this

         23  could serve to prevent heating emergencies if it was

         24  better structured.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

                                                            16

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  any questions? Gentlemen, down there.  I'm so glad

          3  you are all here today. Getting ready for the next

          4  hearing, is that -- we're practising? Okay, thank

          5  you Molly.

          6                 What?  Oh, I thought that was you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Hi.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          9  Member Melinda Katz.

         10                 Frank Ricci, RSA?

         11                 MR. RICCI:  Thank you, Madam, Chair

         12  Members of the Committee.  My name is Frank Ricci.

         13  I am the Director of Government Affairs for the Rent

         14  Stabilization Association.  On my left is Mitch

         15  Pesilkin (phonetic), the General Counsel for RSA.

         16                 For those of you who don't know, the

         17  Rent Stabilization Association represents about

         18  25,000 owners of multiple dwellings in New York City

         19  which collectively contain about a million units of

         20  housing.  We want to use today's hearing as an

         21  opportunity to comment on Intro. 114.

         22                 I'd like to start off by emphasizing

         23  that the RSA strongly believes in a strong Code

         24  Enforcement system and that owners who willfully

         25  neglect their buildings should be fined.  The full
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          2  extent of the law should be used against them to

          3  prevent them from neglecting their buildings.

          4  Having said that, the new fine structure that is

          5  part of Intro. 114 I think could use some

          6  modification.

          7                 Simple fact of the matter is that

          8  mechanical systems such as hot water heaters,

          9  burners, boilers, even your own car, any mechanical

         10  system is subject to break- down no matter how well

         11  you maintain it.  Specially in this day and age

         12  where you have a lot of new high- tech systems.  I

         13  don't know of any owner who doesn't have a large

         14  multiple dwelling that doesn't have some kind of

         15  heat computer on the system to regulate the heat

         16  based on the temperature outside.  These are just

         17  facts of life and things like that do break down.  I

         18  think HPD recognizes that.

         19                 Our concern is not for the

         20  recalcitrant owner who will allow fines to build up

         21  and neglect a boiler or burner.  But it is the

         22  innocent owner who may have a simple mechanical

         23  break down and, specially the smaller owner who is

         24  not a priority to a lot of burner, boiler companies

         25  that service these things. Sometimes, they can't get
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          2  someone out there in an hour or two to start fixing

          3  something.  It may take half a day, a day, who

          4  knows. They may have to order some parts.

          5                 So, we would just like to say that,

          6  while we don't oppose Intro. 114, we'd like to

          7  suggest a modification that the lower limit of the

          8  fines be left at 250 and 500 respectively.  That the

          9  upper limit be allowed to slide up to the 500 into

         10  the 1,000 that's actually part of the bill now.

         11  This way it gives HPD some discretion to distinguish

         12  between the innocent owner who may not have the

         13  buying power that a larger owner does and, at least,

         14  have the discretion to impose a lower fine if the

         15  case calls for it. But then also have the discretion

         16  to have the higher fine on someone who they believe

         17  is willfully neglecting their building.

         18                 I'd also like to just use the

         19  opportunity to talk about some of the educational

         20  programs that HPD has run over the years that we've

         21  supported.  It would actually work for some tenant

         22  groups in the City to secure funding through state

         23  legislature or the City Council over the years for

         24  first- time offenders who have heat and hot water

         25  violations where -- it's a program where if you're
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          2  not familiar with it, if they're a first- time

          3  offender, HPD has the discretion to waive the $250

          4  fine and actually send the owner to a 20- hour

          5  training class to learn better how to maintain your

          6  building.  It's been in place for about eight years

          7  now.  I think it's been very successful and I think

          8  that programs like this should be encouraged.  I'll

          9  answer any questions for you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Are there any

         11  questions?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Frank, on your

         14  notion that someone should have discretion; who

         15  would have that discretion?  How would you envision

         16  that process working?

         17                 MR. RICCI:  I believe right now,

         18  maybe Mitch can answer that, I would think it's

         19  HPD's Litigation Bureau.  At this point has the

         20  discretion to impose that fine.

         21                 MR. PESILKIN:  And in fact that's how

         22  it works for all of the other violations under the

         23  Housing Maintenance Code. There are ranges now and,

         24  in the context of litigation, when HPD goes into

         25  court, depending on the nature of the litigation,
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          2  depending on the nature of the owner, they then

          3  settle their cases depending upon the egregiousness

          4  of the conditions and they then decide to end up

          5  either at the bottom of the range or at the top of

          6  the range or in the middle of the range.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And who signs

          8  off on it?  I mean, HPD says we think --

          9                 MR. PESILKIN:  Oh, that ultimately --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: -- This is a

         11  $1,000 a day fine and you don't think so, you think

         12  it's $500 a day.

         13                 MR. PESILKIN:  Well, all of these are

         14  court- ordered. HPD enforces their penalties by

         15  going to Housing Court and nothing is final until

         16  the housing judge so orders the stipulation between

         17  the owner and HPD.  So ultimately, whatever HPD and

         18  the owner negotiate between them is subject to

         19  further review by the housing court.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: If they don't

         21  agree it's subject to the decision of the Housing

         22  Court.

         23                 MR. PESILKIN: Right.  So, for

         24  example, if the judge may be familiar with the owner

         25  from the context of other litigation, if in fact he
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          2  believes that HPD is settling too low, he may try to

          3  get the settlement higher.  And conversely, if he

          4  knows that the owner perhaps has a very good track

          5  record and he has experienced in other areas and he

          6  thinks the settlement may be too high, obviously in

          7  that situation the judge has the opportunity to have

          8  a role in that settlement as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So the way

         10  the law is written now, forget about 114, in the

         11  current state of the law there is no discretion in

         12  terms of that $500 a day subsequent violation fine?

         13                 MR. PESILKIN:  There is discretion in

         14  the sense that HPD penalties run per day and they

         15  are on- going at $250 per day for heat and $250 a

         16  day for hot water.  What ultimately happens is that

         17  HPD will settle a case.  Let's assume is a simple

         18  settlement.  The owner is not a -- it's not an

         19  egregious problem.  They'll settle it for, let's say

         20  $500.  $250 for one day of heat and $250 for one day

         21  of hot water even though the per- day penalties

         22  would have allowed them to go higher.  Here, if the

         23  minimum threshold is going to be $500 for heat and

         24  $500 for hot water, they're going to be basically be

         25  locked- in to a $1,000 minimum whereas now there's a
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          2  $500 minimum.  So this would, the proposal that

          3  we're putting on the table would allow more

          4  flexibility depending on the nature and character of

          5  the owner who has not provided heat and hot water.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  What I'm

          7  understanding in 114 is the only thing that's really

          8  changing is the amount.  So what you're basically

          9  saying is that you don't want the minimum amount

         10  changed. You want to leave that minimum available --

         11                 MR. PESILKIN:  That's right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: -- But this

         13  entire notion of discretion still exists it's just

         14  that we're raising the floor for what the minimum

         15  fine would be in 114.

         16                 MR. PESILKIN:  That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I understand.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         19  Member Jackson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON.  Thank you

         21  Madam Chair. Good morning.

         22                 With respects to the proposal that

         23  you're putting forward to amend this Intro., in your

         24  opinion, should a proposed fine for a landlord

         25  concerning a violation of the law, should it be for
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          2  that owner or should it be per building?  For

          3  example, there are owners that own multiple

          4  buildings, several one, five, ten, twenty and some

          5  of them have a history of not providing essential

          6  services.  In your opinion, should the fines be to

          7  that individual owner regardless of what building he

          8  owns or should it be specific to a particular

          9  building and what's your reasoning for that.

         10                 MR. RICCI:  Well, Councilman, I know

         11  you came late but that was actually addressed in the

         12  HPD testimony and we agree with HPD that it should

         13  be per building not per owner.  For them,

         14  enforcement and if HPD is still here, it's better to

         15  let them state their own position but, from what I

         16  heard in the testimony that enforcement is too

         17  difficult if they do it per owner on top of the fact

         18  that some buildings have multiple owners,

         19  partnerships, limited liability companies, etc.,

         20  etc.  So just as a practical matter, what I heard

         21  from them was that it should be per building and --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And so you

         23  concur with that.

         24                 MR. RICCI:  -- I think I do concur

         25  with that, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Now,

          3  what if, in this scenario, what if there is one

          4  owner, or partnership, that owns a dozen buildings

          5  and, from a historical perspective, the management

          6  of all of the buildings has been not very good as

          7  far as heat and hot water.  Should HPD have the

          8  discretion, in your opinion, to give one building

          9  the lower fine, that your range of the fine that

         10  you're referring to, knowing the historical aspect

         11  of this particular owner in reference to all of the

         12  buildings that they're owning and managing.

         13                 MR. RICCI:  In my opinion, I believe

         14  HPD should have the discretion and, let me just vary

         15  a little bit from the scenario you just put forward.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         17                 MR. RICCI:  There's clearly going to

         18  be a case where you have an owner or managing

         19  company who has a reputation of neglecting every

         20  building.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         22                 MR. RICCI:  In that case, I believe

         23  and I've seen it in the past, the last 20 years that

         24  I have been at RSA, that HPD does consolidate this

         25  cases and they do go after owners who have that
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          2  reputation.

          3                 On the other hand, though, you may

          4  have an owner who owns multiple buildings and he may

          5  have one building where the tenants in that building

          6  are neglectful of the building and a lot of the

          7  violations that are causing the problem could be

          8  tenant caused.  Sometimes you may have a scenario

          9  that, maybe just because of the tenancy of the

         10  building it looks worse than -- it's not the owner's

         11  fault, but it may be the tenants who are really

         12  neglecting the building or they may have drug

         13  problems, anything like that. So I think that

         14  discretion should be with HPD.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, I agree

         16  with that also.  Now with respects to -- you had

         17  indicated in your statement that there needs to be

         18  flexibility like cars, mechanical systems do break

         19  down.  I truly understand that.  I'm a realist.  I

         20  live in a rent- stabilized building and I know,

         21  sometimes the system breaks down and there's no heat

         22  or hot water and I call up and, within a reasonable

         23  period of time, it's repaired.  Now you were saying

         24  that, sometimes a system may need a mechanical part

         25  that may not be available.  Do you believe that the
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          2  landlord has the responsibility to initially assess

          3  the situation within a, specially during the winter

          4  season, within a short period of time and what

          5  period of time do you feel that that assessment to

          6  determine what the problem is.

          7                 MR. RICCI:  I do believe that an

          8  owner does have a responsibility to assess the

          9  situation as soon as possible.  I don't know if I

         10  can put a time limit on it.  It may depend on the

         11  size of the building.  On a larger building where

         12  you have a live in super, the super's job is to get

         13  there right away.  He's on site.  He should get

         14  there within a few hours.  He may be doing something

         15  else and may not be aware of the problem but,

         16  certainly, he should look at if it's a heat or hot

         17  water violation in the middle of winter immediately.

         18    Smaller buildings do not have live in supers.

         19  Sometimes they have a super in the neighborhood.

         20  Sometimes the management company is in the

         21  neighborhood.  So to put a time limit -- there is no

         22  one- size- fits- all in my opinion on that.  If you

         23  have an owner- occupied building, obviously the

         24  owner's in the same boat as everyone else.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.
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          2                 MR. RICCI:  They're going to look at

          3  it immediately. I can tell you anecdotally that I

          4  own a building myself and I live in it.  My problem

          5  sometimes, when something breaks, is that a tenant

          6  doesn't tell me cause they don't want to bother me.

          7  So sometimes things get worse over a period of a day

          8  or two because someone just doesn't tell you.  So to

          9  put a time limit on, there's no one- size- fits-

         10  all.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I believe

         12  that RSA, correct me if I'm wrong, believes that

         13  there should be systems in place as far as methods

         14  of communication.  So that if a tenant, whether it's

         15  a large building with 100 units or small one with

         16  two or three -- they should have protocols in place

         17  where a tenant should be able to either call the

         18  superintendent, if it's a live- in super. Normally,

         19  the super has a beeper or pager or cell phone or, if

         20  it's a small building where, someone should be able

         21  to be reached 24 hours.  For example, let's assume

         22  it's Saturday at 11:00 at night. That tenant should

         23  be able to reach someone to say, listen, we have no

         24  heat and hot water.  You need to deal with this

         25  right away, should not have to wait for Monday
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          2  morning to communicate with someone.  Is that

          3  correct?

          4                 MR. RICCI:  That's correct.  It's

          5  part of the Housing Maintenance Code.  Every owner,

          6  once a year, has to register with HPD who the 24-

          7  hour day -- what the 24- hour day contact number is

          8  in the event there is an emergency.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         12                 Do we have any other questions?  Just

         13  two. Oh, Molly left?  Molly's gone?  Oh, okay.  I

         14  was going to comment on her heat thing cause I'm

         15  sitting here thinking about it.

         16                 We have no other folks to testify; we

         17  have no other questions.  We have ladies up there,

         18  though.  Who are you, ladies?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Hello ladies.

         20                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         21  AUDIENCE: Chappaqua Women's Club.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Chappaqua?

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         24  AUDIENCE: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: How's Hillary
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          2  doing?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How's Bill

          4  doing?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Send my regards.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  More

          7  importantly, how is Bill doing, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That's

          9  right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well,

         11  welcome.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         13  AUDIENCE: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         15  all.  This hearing, I guess, is over.  I hope that

         16  my Committee Members that will use this as a model

         17  for the hearing on the 30th. Okay.

         18                 This hearing is over.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 10:49 a.m.)
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